
CITY OF HILLSBORO 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
Agenda – Regular Meeting - Tuesday, April 18, 2023, at 6:30 p.m. 
Zoom Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81338906250 
 

A.  Meeting Called to Order 

B. Approval of Consent Agenda 

1. Vouchers totaling $208,242.46 

2. Minutes for the April 4, 2023 Meeting 

C. Public Comment 

D. Presentation of the 2022 Audit Financial Statements by Adams Brown 

E. Public Hearing for Ordinance 1366 regarding dog confinement 

F. Business Items 

1. Consideration of Ordinance 1366 regarding dog confinement 

2. Consideration of a revised quote from Johnson Service Company for sewer lining 

totaling $257,075 

3. Consideration of a purchase of a Chlorine Dioxide generator from D&F Services LLC 

4. Lease-Purchase Agreement with Central National Bank for the purchase of 

equipment 

G. Discussion 

1. Meeting Room Rental Policy 

2. Neighborhood Revitalization Plan 

3. Q1 Strategic Plan Update 

H. City Administrator’s Report 

I. Public Comments 

J. Council Comments 

K. Adjournment 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81338906250


Hillsboro, Kansas 
April 4, 2023 
 
1. The City Council met in regular session via Zoom and in person on Tuesday, April 4, 2023 at 6:32pm with 
Mayor Lou Thurston and Council members Blake Beye, David Loewen and Byron McCarty participating.  
 
Members Absent:  Brent Driggers.  
 
2. Others Participating:  Andrew Kovar, City Attorney; Matt Stiles, City Administrator; Danielle Bartel, City Clerk; 
Dale Dalke, Street Superintendent; Ronald Wilkins, 606 S Lincoln. 
 
3. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Lou Thurston called the meeting to order at 6:32pm. 
 
4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

MINUTES for the regular meeting dated March 21, 2023. 

VOUCHERS in the amount of $93,887.47. 

PARK SHELTER ROOF REPLACEMENT REAPPROVAL in the amount of $17,883 with Spring Branch Construction. 

Council member McCarty motioned to approve the consent agenda. Council member Loewen seconded. Motion 
carried.   
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None 
 
6. DEPARTMENT HEAD ANNUAL REPORT – DALE DALKE, STREET SUPERINTENDENT:  Dale Dalke noted he has 
been with the city for 16 years and highlighted his team of Matt Hein and Darin Luthi. The street department has 
one open position. Dalke shared of several large projects over the last year with the most significant being the 
splash park where staff installed new lines on Washington Street, poured 250’ of full curb and angled parking, 
ran underground trenching for lines, and more. The staff, along with help from Vogts Parga, will pour 60 yards of 
concrete for the main splash pad next week. Additional work will include fabricating a steel shade structure, 
sidewalks, a patio area, and planting grass.  
 
Dalke also mentioned significant projects including drainage improvements, decluttering the museum, 
conducting an online and in person auction, and resealing downtown streets. Looking forward, he shared of 
streets needing to be rebuilt, and new sidewalks reaching to the outskirts of town. He would also like to see the 
sidewalk replacement program promoted. Dalke listed several equipment upgrades that would be helpful and 
thanked the council for supporting the street department with funds and in the work they do. Mayor Thurston 
thanked him for the report and the work done by Dale and his team. 
 
7. BUSINESS ITEMS  
 
CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCE 1367 – KEEPING OF CHICKENS:  Administrator Stiles reviewed the ordinance 
for allowing chickens within city limits and the associated requirements.  
 
Council member McCarty motioned to adopt Ordinance 1366 and authorized the mayor to sign. Council member 
Loewen seconded. Mayor Thurston clarified with the City Attorney that this ordinance does not supersede any 
homeowners’ association regulations. Motion carried 3-0.  
 
Ronald Wilkins of 606 S Lincon shared his appreciation to the Council and staff for the action taken.   
 
CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 2023-05 – ESTABLISHING THE SUMP PUMP AMNESTY PROGRAM:  
Administrator Stiles described the sump pump amnesty program which encourages self-reporting by citizens to 
aid the city in complying with the EPA & KDHE inflow and infiltration mandate.  
 
Council member Loewen motioned to approve Resolution 2023-05 to establish the Sump Pump Amnesty 
Program. Council member McCarty seconded. Motion carried 3-0. 
 
LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH CENTRAL NATIONAL BANK:  Administrator Stiles noted the lease purchase 
agreement will not be issued until a specific tandem dump truck has been selected. Staff recommended this 
item be tabled.   
 
Council member Beye motioned to table the lease-purchase agreement with Central National Bank for the 
purchase of equipment until the specific tandem axle dump truck has been identified. Council member McCarty 
seconded. Motion carried.  
 



HILLSBORO FORD INVOICES:  Administrator Stiles reviewed invoices from Hillsboro Ford totaling $1,822.30. 
Council member McCarty motioned to approve payment. Council member Loewen seconded. Council member 
Beye abstained. Motion carried. 
 
8. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
ORDINANCE 1366 – DOG CONFINEMENT:  Administrator Stiles highlighted two minor changes, the first 
regarding securing a dog on the back of a truck, and second, a technical change to note that the municipal court 
can determine if a dog is vicious. Staff recommended a public hearing be held on April 18, 2023.  
 
Council member McCarty motioned to set a public hearing for Ordinance 1366 regarding dog confinement at the 
next regular City Council meeting on April 18, 2023 at 6:30pm. Council member Beye seconded. Council member 
Loewen mentioned he will not be at the April 18 meeting. Motion carried.   
 
9. CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:  Administrator Stiles reported on the following: 

• Fire Station Meeting 
• County Zoning 
• Light Remodel at the Golf Clubhouse 
• Landlord Letter 
• Housing Focus Groups 
• Switching Backup Server Backup System 
• Approved for KDHE Sole Source Purchase 
• Meeting with Mirror on STAND Program 
• Notorious Exhibit 
• Damage at the Park 
• Sales Tax Revenue  

 
10. LAND BANK MEETING: Council moved into a Land Bank meeting at 7:11pm. The regular City Council meeting 
resumed at 7:21pm.  
 
11. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None. 
 
12. COUNCIL COMMENTS:  Council member Loewen mentioned that Delores Dalke, former Mayor, is not doing 
well. Mayor Thurston shared that Dalke is in intensive care and to keep her and her family and friends in mind. 
Council member Beye shared about the first fire committee meeting and inquired about the Pickup Line. Staff 
noted the city had discussed a potential location with the owners.  
 
13. ADJOURNMENT:  Council meeting adjourned at 7:23pm. 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  _______________________________________  
   LOUIS THURSTON, MAYOR 
 
 
 ______________________________________  
  DANIELLE BARTEL, CITY CLERK  









































Staff Report 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Matt Stiles, City Administrator 

Date: 04/18/2023 

Re: Ordinance 1366 Dog Confinement  

Background: Ordinance 1366 provides an expanded definitions of dog confinement. The ordinance 
has no changes from the previous version reviewed by Council on April 4, 2023. As discussed, the 
ordinance provides for specific definitions for confinement of dogs on owner’s property and in motor 
vehicles. The intention of the ordinance is to provide clear directions for dog owners and improve 
safety for pedestrians.  

Financial Impact: NA 

Recommendation: A public hearing for the proposed ordinance will allow residents to speak on the 
subject. Pending any amendments, the council could then move to adopt the Ordinance or send it 
back for revision and review at a future meeting.  

 



TWG REF:  1010839 
Code Ordinance (Downtown Parking) 

(Ordinance Summary published in The Hillsboro Star-Journal on 
______________, 2023 and the full text of the Ordinance made available at 
https://cityofhillsboro.net for a minimum of one (1) week from the date of 
publication) 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 1366 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HILLSBORO, KANSAS AMENDING 
CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 2, SECTION 2-208 OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF 
HILLSBORO, KANSAS. 

 
WHEREAS, the governing body of the City of Hillsboro, Kansas (the “City”) has 

previously adopted Chapter 2, Article 2, Section 2-208 of the Code of the City of Hillsboro, Kansas 
(the “Code”), which contains provisions regarding confinement of dogs; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City finds it necessary to amend Chapter 2, Article 2, Section 2-208 of the 

Code. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
OF HILLSBORO, KANSAS: 

 
Section 1. Chapter 2, Article 2, Section 2-208 shall be amended and replaced and shall 

read as follows:  

2-208. Dogs shall be confined.  

All dogs must be confined to the residential property of the owner, keeper or harborer of said 
dog; provided, dogs may be taken off the residential property of the owner, keeper or harborer 
when: 

(a) on a leash, no longer than 10 feet in length and the leash and animal are under the 
control of a responsible person. Whether a person is responsible shall be determined by giving due 
consideration to the size and temperament of the animal; provided, all dogs determined to be 
vicious and registered as vicious animals under the provisions of this chapter shall be muzzled 
when off the residential property of the owner, keeper or harborer and shall be under the control 
of an adult; or 

(b) the dog is confined in a cage or within the enclosed interior of a motor vehicle; 
provided, it is a violation of this Section for a dog to be transported in the open bed of a truck 
unless restrained in a cage, on a leash or by other means that will prevent the animal from jumping 
or falling off the vehicle. 

For the purposes of this Section "confined to the residential property of the owner, keeper or 
harborer" shall mean, but not be limited to mean, confined either inside the residential structure of 
the owner, keeper or harborer, or if outside the residential structure of the owner, keeper or 
harborer, the dog shall be physically restrained on a chain or leash or within a suitable fence or 



TWG REF:  1010839 2 
Code Ordinance (Downtown Parking) 

other proper method of physical restraint from which it cannot escape or endanger public safety 
outside the suitable method of confinement; provided: 

(a) If the dog is in the physical presence of its owner, keeper, or harborer and on its 
owner's, keeper's or harborer's property and under the demonstrated direct and immediate voice 
control of its owner, keeper or harborer, it shall be considered confined to the residential property 
of its owner, keeper or harborer. It shall not be considered confined to the residential property of 
the owner, keeper or harborer, if the dog is off the property of the owner, keeper or harborer, 
whether it is under the demonstrated direct and immediate voice control of its owner, keeper or 
harborer or not. 

(b) Dogs may be confined to the premises of the residential property of their owner, 
keeper or harborer by an electronic fence or an electronic collar. An electronic fence or electronic 
collar is defined as a fence or a collar that controls the movement of a dog by emitting an electrical 
shock when the animal wearing the collar nears the boundary of the owner's, keeper's or harborer's 
property. The collar may be controlled manually by a person or automatically in a predetermined 
manner. Dogs confined to residential property of the owner, keeper, or harborer, by an electronic 
fence or an electronic collar, shall not be permitted to be nearer than 10 feet away from any public 
sidewalk or property line that is contiguous to neighboring property. In addition, dogs are 
prohibited from being confined by an electronic fence or an electronic collar in the front yards of 
an owner's, keeper's or harborer's property. No dog having been found a dangerous animal by the 
municipal court shall be confined by an electronic fence or an electronic collar. All owners, keepers 
or harborers of dogs who use an electronic fence shall clearly post their property to indicate to the 
public that a dog is confined to the property by an electronic fence or electronic collar. Electronic 
collars may not be used to control a dog when it is off its owner's, keeper's or harborer's property. 

Section 2. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its 
adoption by the Governing Body of the City, approval by the Mayor and either (a) publication 
once in the official newspaper of the City, or (b) publication of a summary hereof certified as 
legally accurate and sufficient by the City Attorney.  
 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]



TWG REF:  1010839 3 
Code Ordinance (Downtown Parking) 

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the Governing Body of the City of Hillsboro, 
Kansas this 18th day of April, 2023. 
 
      CITY OF HILLSBORO, KANSAS 
 
 
 [seal] 
              
      Lou Thurston, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
       
Danielle Bartel, City Clerk 



TWG REF:  1010839 
Code Ordinance (Downtown Parking) 

(Ordinance Summary published in The Hillsboro Star-Journal on 
______________, 2023 and the full text of the Ordinance made available at 
https://cityofhillsboro.net for a minimum of one (1) week from the date of 
publication) 

 
Ordinance No. 1366 Summary 

 
On April 18, 2023, the City of Hillsboro, Kansas adopted Ordinance No. 1366, adopting Chapter 
2, Article 2, Section 2-208 of the Code of the City of Hillsboro, Kansas regarding confinement of 
dogs.  A complete copy of this ordinance may be obtained or viewed free of charge at the Office 
of the City Clerk at City Hall, 118 E. Grand, Hillsboro, Kansas 67063 or at 
www.cityofhillsboro.net. This summary is certified legally accurate and sufficient by the Hillsboro 
City Attorney pursuant to K.S.A. 12-3001 et seq. 
 
SUMMARY CERTIFIED: 
 
 
 
       
City Attorney 
 
Date:        
 
 

https://url.avanan.click/v2/___https:/cityofhillsboro.net___.YXAzOmNpdHlvZmhpbGxzYm9ybzphOm86NTcyYzczMjhkOWNhYWI4M2ZjNWI1YjliNzFiYTYxMDM6Njo0NTJlOjgxZTc5MTA1NzJjM2U5MjEzOTI0MTY1YTkwMWYzY2M5YzBjYTRkMDYyNDZiMjcxMTBkOWM3ZDMwNWVmZmYyN2E6cDpU
https://url.avanan.click/v2/___http:/www.cityofhillsboro.net___.YXAzOmNpdHlvZmhpbGxzYm9ybzphOm86NTcyYzczMjhkOWNhYWI4M2ZjNWI1YjliNzFiYTYxMDM6Njo3MjliOmJhNGQ2NmFiMDRjOTc2NTQzYWVmZWQ0ODRmNmYwYjQyMjRkNjc3MzgzZWNiMzNhZmMwMTRjZjFiNmViNTM4NWM6cDpU


Staff Report 
To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 

Matt Stiles, City Administrator 

04/18/2023 

Revised Proposal for Sewer Lining 

Background: On February 7, 2023 the council approved camera and cleaning of sewer lines and 
relining sewer lines up to a cost of $247,326. The cleaning and camera portion is complete, and we 
are ready to move onto the lining phase. During the cleaning process it was discovered that the area 
labeled as Phase 2 had, in most places, been lined previously, but was not identified on the system 
maps. That allowed the Water/Sewer department to pivot and add sections of what was going to be 
Phase 3.  

The revised cleaning led to the addition of three blocks of sewer main on D Street needing to be lined. 
The section on D street is 1090 linear feet from Floral to Ash. With that addition, staff were able to 
work with Johnson to revise the original quoted price. We were able to get a reduction in the linear 
foot price from $39 per foot to $35 per foot. The original 5,275 LF expanded to 6,000 LF and the 
overall projected cost increased from $247,326 to $257,075.   

The area to be relined is 
the yellow area. This area 
was the worst in town. The 
blue areas were Phase 2 
and were mostly lined 
already. The pink 
highlighted area on D 
Street is the additional 
1,000 identified as 
needing to be lined.  



2 

Financial Impact: Currently the sewer fund does not have the project in the approved budget. 
However, the fund balance is over $789,000 providing the financial resources to complete this project 
with a budget amendment. The revised cost increase is 4% but allows an additional 1,000 LF of lining. 

Recommendation: Staff recommend approving the revised proposal from Johnson Services 
Company for $257,075. The sewer budget will need to be amended by the end of 2023 to 
accommodate the expenditure. 





Staff Report 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Matt Stiles, City Administrator 

Date: 04/18/2023 

Re: Chlorine Dioxide Generator  

Background: The proposal from D&F Services for the sole source purchase of a Chlorine Dioxide 
Generator has been approved by KDHE as part of plant improvement forgivable loan. The product 
has meet all the requirements for KDHE including the Build America, Buy America Act and can be 
purchased using the forgivable loan funds. As a side note, D&F Services is based in Overland Park 
and equipment was manufactured in La Cygne, Kansas. 

Approval of the purchase will allow the city to get the equipment installed before the summer. The 
installed equipment will be used to pilot the technology before the major improvements at the plant 
proceed. It is important to have the generator in place before the iron and manganese issues from the 
reservoir peak in warmer months. 

Financial Impact: This project will be paid through the forgivable loan proceeds from KDHE.  

Recommendation: Staff recommends approving the purchase of Chlorine Dioxide Generator from 
D&F Services at a cost of $58,750. 

 

































Page 1 of 3 
 

City of Hillsboro 

MUNICIPAL POLICY STATEMENT  

 

Policy No. 100             

Subject: Rules & Regulations for Rental of City-Owned Buildings 

Effective Date: April 18, 2023  

 

The City Council hereby establishes rules and regulations for the rental of city-owned buildings.  

1. POLICY 
 
1. The City of Hillsboro has priority for use all city owned facilities and all rentals are subject to 

availability. The City reserves the right to determine availability for any renter based on city 
need, terms of this policy and previous actions of specific renters. 

2. All rentals of the City owned facilities are subject to rental fees and a refundable deposit. 
Community serving nonprofit organizations, civic groups and churches will still be required 
to provide a refundable deposit. Rental fees may be waived for community serving 
nonprofit organizations and civic groups for the purpose of conducting meetings. Churches 
will not be charged a rental fee for special worship services or study groups. Church groups 
are not allowed to conduct regular ongoing services in public facilities.  

3. Churches, civic groups or community serving nonprofit organizations can request waiver of 
rental fees for fundraising activities provided the fundraising activities are primarily to 
support community activities and are not for the primary benefit of the organization.  

4. During community-wide events, such as the Arts and Crafts Fair or downtown block parties, 
the city may opt to make exceptions to rental agreement rules as may be needed to 
promote the success of community-wide events. Decisions on those variations are up to the 
Mayor and City Council or their official designee. 

5. The meeting rooms at City Hall, the Scout House, and Golf Clubhouse are available for rent 
and are subject to the Rental rates and rules provided in section 3 of this policy. 
 

2. RENTAL RATES AND RULES 

Rental charges are as follows: 

City Hall- $50.00 rental fee, plus $30.00 refundable deposit includes both meeting rooms and 
kitchen 

Scout House- $75.00 rental fee, plus $50.00 refundable deposit 

Golf Clubhouse- $75.00 rental fee, plus $50.00 refundable deposit 

 



Page 2 of 3 
 

All rentals of City facilities are subject to the following rules: 

1. Reservations for use of these rooms may be made by contacting the city office. Reservations 
are made on a first-come, first-serve basis. Reservations are not considered complete until 
the city has received the required deposit and signed agreement. 

2. The City of Hillsboro reserves the right to refuse or cancel reservations if a conflict arises 
pertaining to City affairs.  

3. Occupancy rules limit the size of the gathering that can occur at any city-owned facility. The 
combined occupancy of the city hall meeting rooms and kitchen is 110 people (50 in east 
room and 60 people in the west room). The Scout House will accommodate up to 64 people. 
The Golf Clubhouse can accommodate up to 50 people.  

4. Setting up the chairs and tables is the responsibility of the renter. All chairs and tables must 
be returned to their storage place or returned to the previous alignment after the rental 
date.  All trash shall be placed in the provided containers.  

5. Renters are not allowed to tape and/or pin posters, signs, or other decor on painted walls. 
Any signs, posters, or décor can be hung using non-marking means. All hangers must be 
removed by the renter.  

6. Floors, tables, counters, appliances will be cleaned after each use by renter. Minimal 
cleanup equipment and trash containers will be supplied for renter’s use. All trash must be 
taken to trash or recycling dumpsters outside of the facility. Items left in the refrigerator by 
renters will be thrown out. Excessive items left will result in the loss of deposit. 

7. Renters are not allowed to cut/slice directly on countertops. 
8. The use of the Scout House fireplace by renters is prohibited. Rental of the Scout House 

does not include the exclusive use of Memorial Park amenities. Memorial Park amenities are 
open to the public and subject to public use.  

9. Keys for the rental facilities are to be picked up from City Hall on the day determined at the 
time of rental. Renters will be given a pickup date and asked to identify who is picking up 
the keys. Keys will not be given for the rental until the full rental fee has been paid. 

10. It is the responsibility of the renter to turn off the lights and to lock all doors after use. Keys 
are to be returned to the office the next business day or left in the utility drop box at City 
Hall. 

11. It is the responsibility of the renter to return the heating and air conditioning to 60 degrees 
after rentals. Failure to do so may result in the loss of deposit. 

12. Deposits will be returned to renters only after the facility has been inspected by a city 
employee. Renters will be liable for any damage to the facility.   

13. Consumption of alcoholic beverages is not allowed in the City Hall and Scout House facilities. 
Renters choosing to allow alcoholic beverages at the Golf Clubhouse accept all legal 
responsibility for those actions. No illegal consumption of alcohol or other substances is 
allowed at any city facility. Illegal behavior is subject to law enforcement action.  

14. No boisterous activities that disturb the peace will be allowed by renters. Damage done by 
the renter, or their guests will be the responsibility of the renter. If the deposit amount does 
not cover damages to the facility, the city will seek damages through other means and 
reserves the right to deny future rentals by the renter.  

 



Page 3 of 3 
 

The Governing Body of the City of Hillsboro agreed by motion at the April 18, 2023 regular council 
meeting, to approve this policy statement. With the adoption of this policy, the existing rental policy 
amended on April 6, 2010 is hereby repelled and replaced. Rental reservations made prior to this policy 
will still be subject to fee structure and regulations of the previous policy. 

 

 

Approved: _________________________________________  ____________________ 

Lou Thurston, Mayor Date 

 



Staff Report 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Matt Stiles, City Administrator 

Date: 04/18/2023 

Re: Neighborhood Revitalization 

Background: One of the tools that can be used to encourage housing rehabilitation and development 
is the Neighborhood Revitalization Plan (NRP) program. Currently, Marion County has a countywide 
NRP program which includes Hillsboro. The current County Commissioner has discussed changing or 
eliminating the countywide plan. Regardless of the County’s action, it is worth discussing if a city 
based plan would make sense as an development incentive. 

With the NRP, approved applicants pay taxes normally and receive a rebate, based on a percentage 
of the property tax on improvements to the property. This works for rehabilitation and new 
construction. Any taxing entity can participate in the plan via interlocal agreement. The County keeps 
10% of the rebate amount to handle administering the program. 

NRP was designed for blighted area redevelopment, specifically infill development in more developed 
areas but has primarily been used for entire communities in rural areas. In the case of Marion County, 
the NRP includes the entire county. The Marion County plan is a five-year plan with a descending 
scale of rebate. This scale applies to residential, agricultural, commercial, and industrial property.  The 
Marion County plan was designed for 5-years, but the statute allows for rebate periods up to 10 years, 
100% at discretion of the taxing entities. The plan can be a very powerful tool if used and promoted 
properly.  

If the county plan were to go away or if the city wished to develop its own plan, then a Hillsboro 
specific NRP could expand the benefit. To encourage residential rehabilitation and new construction, 
a Hillsboro Program could be 10 years in length and provide higher rebate amounts. A common 
example of NRP for residential property is a 10-year rebate program that offers rebates at sliding 
scale like Option 1 listed below. The plan can be tailored to whatever is preferrable to all the parties 
involved. Marion County has the highest level of all the taxing entities, 74.999 mills compared to the 
city’s 43.427 and USD 410’s 61.807 mill rate (of which 41.807 is locally levied; 20 mills is the state 
level for schools). Pursuing a new NRP would require new interlocal agreements with Marion County 
and USD 410.  

 
Plan Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10 
Current 90% 80% 70% 60% 50%      
Option 1 90% 90% 80% 80% 70% 70% 60% 60% 50% 50% 
Option 2 90% 80% 70% 60% 50% 40% 30% 20% 10%  

Financial Impact: The financial impact of the NRP is loss of immediate initial tax revenue on the 
improvements or new construction that is rebated back to property owners. It is true that absent an 



2 

NRP any taxing jurisdiction would immediately receive 100% of the property tax income. However, 
when there is no new home construction for several years, the entities receive 100% of nothing. If the 
NRP is generous enough to entice homebuilding, the tradeoff is deferred long-term property tax 
revenue. The timeline for a home to generate property tax value in the future is measured in decades, 
meaning rebating back even for 10 years is still only a fraction of the property tax revenue generated 
over the life of the property. The critical thing is having the home built in the first place, which is not 
happening with the current incentive.  

For all the entities there are benefits other than property taxes that come with new construction. For 
the city, we add new utility customers and users of our services that can contribute to revenue, tax 
base and overall quality of life for the community. The school district can add families with students, 
increasing student population and subsequent state funding. The county benefits from increased 
contributions to sales tax and potentially to vehicle registrations. Overall growth benefits the county, 
creating momentum that can be built on.  

Expanding the NRP benefits both new construction and rehabilitation. New home builders receive a 
potentially significant financial incentive to build in Hillsboro. Assuming a new home construction cost 
of $250,000 on a vacant property, the homeowner would receive a total rebate of $16,130 with the 
current plan, $32,260 with option 1, and $20,738 with option 2. Those benefits are front loaded but are 
still substantial. With the sliding scale the taxing entities begin to see reduced property tax revenue 
immediately, but more importantly they create growth. 

NRP can also be powerful tools for rehabbing property. Rehabilitation projects freeze the current 
home value and the NRP is only on the improvements. In that case the taxing entities whatever the 
property tax was before the improvement continues to be paid, while the improvement is rebated. 
Because rehabilitation is less common and more complicated, it would be better to pursue a more 
aggressive structure. A common approach from other communities is 5 years at 100% for rehabs and 
historic buildings and then sliding scale from year 5 forward.   

It might be beneficial to address commercial/ industrial development in a Hillsboro plan as well. The 
current plan is structure is sufficient, but if Marion County chooses to discontinue the current plan, 
then it would be good for a Hillsboro-based plan to include those categories in an NRP. Attracting 
larger businesses who would benefit most from an NRP is not the focus of our economic development 
strategy. Larger businesses also have access to different incentives already, so the NRP is irrelevant 
for those projects. The NRP becomes important for smaller projects that don’t qualify for other 
programs. 

Recommendation: Developing a new, Hillsboro-based NRP is an investment in time, specifically 
because of the requirements for the program and the interlocal agreements with partners. Working 
with multiple governing bodies can be complicated, but I think it will be worth trying. The NRP can be 
a powerful tool for development. Paired with some of the other incentives we have put in place such 
as waiving connection fees for utilities and potential other incentives like down payment assistance 
through the Housing Resource Commission, an attractive package of incentives could help spur more 
development, specifically housing. 

If the Council wants to move forward, we would need to decide on an initial rebate structure. From 
there we would begin working with the school district and county commission to see what level of 
support they would have for the plan. If support is in place, we can start the formal adoption process. 
If there is no support from the other entities, the City could move forward with an NRP that includes 
just the city taxes. That is a significantly smaller benefit, but still an incentive to consider.  

 



Hillsboro Community Strategic Plan Progress Tracking
Goal: Childcare

TIER 1 GOAL: CHILDCARE

OBJECTIVES

STRATEGY START DATE
COMPLETION 

DATE
Create a community based steering committee to guide the 
creation of a community daycare facility 2020 COMPLETE
Investigate potential partnerships between USD 410, local 
churches, the City and other organizations to locate in a 
daycare facility 2020 COMPLETE

Study the feasibility of the daycare facility in the old hospital. 2021 COMPLETE
Develop the necessary public-private partnerships to access 
funding and make a workable business model. 2021 2022

UPDATES April 2023

UPDATES January 2023

H4C and Trinity will formally sign the transfer of deed on Friday, April 14. Trinity completed its 
last service on Easter Sunday. The board for H4C will formally assume control of the building and 
continue with the design process. 

H4C has received grants from Childcare Aware and the Patterson Family Foundation to support 
the childcare center. Additional private donations of over $100,000 pledged to the center. The 
CDBG will be submitted on May 1. H4C has also applied for additional funds through the 
childcare accelerator grant from KDOC and for a community development tax credit program. 
Additionally, a major private matching donations is set to be announced in the Q2.   

A fundraising progress chart is going to put up in Dale's grocery store front window in February 
2023 to mark fundraising progress. 

Have childcare options that support positive childhood development and support parental 
employment

Ensure sufficient opportunities for anyone in need of childcare
Provide a safe and nurturing environment for children in the community
Improve school preparedness for school aged children

The CDBG application deadline has been pushed from February 1 to May 1 by the state of 
Kansas. H4C will have a substantial match in place at that time and will take possession of Trinity 
Church after Easter Sunday, April 9. The City will have public hearings on the application in 
March or April.

On February 1, 2023 H4C received a $45,000 grant from Childcare Aware of Kansas. With that 
grant H4C has raised over $250,000 for the childcare center. There are additional grants pending 
for and additional $90,000. In addition there are several private donations pledged for matching 
funds.

1 of 11



Hillsboro Community Strategic Plan Progress Tracking
Goal: Childcare

UPDATES October 2022

UPDATES April 2022

The Hillsboro Community Childcare Center (HCCC) is working through the steps to set-up as an 
official nonprofit 501 (c3) organization. Trinity Church has given provisional approval to donating 
the church for the childcare center. The HCCC has sent out business surveys and began collecting 
donations to move the center forward. The HCCC has an architect working on proposals to 
modify the church to serve 99 children. An anticipated operational date is end of 2022.

The City is actively providing administrative support to the HCCC as it moves forward. The 
proposed board would include representatives from the city on the board of directors. There are 
funding opportunities also being researched and there may be a request for the city to 
participate financially on some level. 

Hillsboro Community Child Care Center (H4C) is incorporated as a 501c3 nonprofit. The Center 

The approved paying for Ranson Financial to write a CDBG for the Center. The application is due 
February 1, 2023 and will be for $600,000. The minimum match is 20% or $120,000, however 
H4C is working to get a 1:1 match raising $600,000. 

H4C will be a focus of the Giving Tuesday event on November 29 at Rhubarb Market. The goal of 
reaching $600,000 appears to be attainable based on initial meetings with donors. 

H4C is hosting community meetings to inform the public on the project and its goals. Meetings 
are taking place at Trinity Mennonite in the October and November. 

A fundraising progress chart is going to put up in Dale's grocery store front window in February 
2023 to mark fundraising progress. 

2 of 11



Hillsboro Community Strategic Plan Progress Tracking
Goal: Housing

TIER 1 GOAL: HOUSING

OBJECTIVES

STRATEGY START DATE
COMPLETION 

DATE
Complete Housing Assessment Tool (HAT) to become eligible for 
housing related grants and establish a market. 2021 COMPLETE

Develop housing strategy for individuals markets identified by the HAT. 2021 COMPLETE
Implement tools not currently used by the city to housing development 
based on needs 2021 2021
Consider a city based program to control blight by improving the 
appearance of homes and businesses. 2022 Ongoing

Apply for grant funds for CDBG, Kansas Housing Resource Commission, 
HUD or any available programs to offset development costs. 2021 2026

Identify redevelopment properties for South Central Kansas Economic 
Development District (SCKEDD) development program. 2021 2022
Develop applicable codes for the use of alternative construction 
methods such as tiny homes or container homes. 2022 COMPLETE
Focus on developing additional duplex properties or apartment 
properties for rentals. 2022 2023

UPDATES April 2023

Offer a range of housing options that improve existing housing stock and add additional homes to meet 
community expansion

Understand the housing needs of the community and commercial viability of housing
Develop an average of 5 new housing units per year
Actively have 3 housing developers working with the community
Actively prevent blight or underuse of property

A potential housing project near the elementary school will likely be delayed until 2024. The state 
program has closed its application for the year. Another local developer has expressed interest in 
development single family homes in that generally area if a deal for the lots could be worked out. 

Staff will present some potential ideas for expanding the Neighborhood Revitalization Program (NRP) in 
Hillsboro. If the plan is acceptable then the City would need to work with USD 410 and Marion County to 
see if they would be partners on the plan. 

Staff have discussed a possible redevelopment project for the old hospital property. The property has 
been shown to the business person and the property is being considered. Cost of redevelopment will 
likely be the largest factor in any plan. 

The development of shipping container houses, recently thought to be abandoned, has resurfaced with 
another party interested in helping meet the requirements of the overlay district.

3 of 11



Hillsboro Community Strategic Plan Progress Tracking
Goal: Housing

UPDATES January 2023

UPDATES October 2022

UPDATES April 2022

Met with housing developers from Wichita and OurTown Development Initiatives (ODI) to tour the old 
hospital and other available lots in the city. There is some interest in both the hospital but more in 
developing affordable housing on lots. Many of the programs used by the developer have multiple year 
timelines, the possibilities will be revisited in July 2022. 

ODI has provided a potential model for developing a city grant program to help revitalize different areas 
of town. The focus has been on downtown but could be modified to help residential areas. A grant 
program may also be a candidate for matching funds from CDGB or KHRC. 

The Planning Commission has developed the "A-H" Alternative Construction Housing zoning overlay that 
would allow for alternative construction methods. Focus has been on shipping container homes, but the 
A-H zoning would allow for all types of alternative construction housing. Creation of the A-H overlay will 
be heard at the April Planning Commission meeting and will be in front of the City Council in May. 

Staff meet with a local person interested in developing the old hospital into apartments. Any deal would 
require a development plan and timeline from the developer.

At the LKM Conference, staff attended a session put on by the Topeka Opportunity to Own (TOTO) 
program. That program provides assistance for buying entry level homes that is a partnership between a 
educational group, the city of Topeka and a bank. There may be potential in starting a similar type of 
program in Hillsboro with some more research and partnership building.

ODI put the city in contact with another housing developer from Oklahoma. We have been working with 
them on potentially developing the lots between the HMBC and the elementary school. The area scored 
higher on the KHRC application than a project the developer was awarded in 2022. 

A potential housing project near the elementary school will likely be delayed until an state program 
application period in 2024. The proposal was delayed to due to issues with the land owner.

Rural Housing Incentive District is being asked for by a developer for the Old Town Building. The RHID in 
the downtown area would allow for the recovery of costs associated with renovating upstairs 
apartments in the down town area. Other areas of town can also utilize the program. 

WSU's PPMC is completing a Housing Needs Assessment, required for the city to access the Rural 
Housing Incentive District (RHID) program. The work should be completed in May 2023.

4 of 11



Hillsboro Community Strategic Plan Progress Tracking
Goal: Workforce

TIER 1 GOAL: WORKFORCE

OBJECTIVES

STRATEGY START DATE
COMPLETION 

DATE
Develop a "Key Customer" plan 2021 COMPLETE
Develop a CEO Roundtable that includes Tabor College, USD 
410, HCC and BCCC 2021 ONGOING
Develop a workforce awareness plan 2022 2022
Establish training collaborations to strengthen workforce 
development 2021 2023

Focus development strategies to promote entrepreneurship 2022 ONGOING
Develop specific training programs between USD 410 and 
industrial partners to meet workforce needs 2021 ONGOING

Investigate potential opportunities for apprenticeships or paid 
tuition programs that encourage employee training. 2022 2022
Research opportunities to recruit workforce from other groups 
such as immigrant populations. 2021 ONGOING

UPDATES April 2023

UPDATES January 2023

UPDATES October 2022

Develop a pipeline of educated talent to support current and future businesses.

Stronger collaborative relationships between educational providers
Meet the workforce needs of the community and county
Provide opportunities for community members to find employment

Discussions continue with BCC, USD 410 and local partners about a potential building trades 
center. BCC is working on assessing the viability and potential students.

Discussions have stalled out with BCC, USD 410 and local partners about a potential building 
trades center. More follow-up is needed by BCC to move the program forward.

The CKEC at Tabor had its official dedication in early January 2023. CKEC is now offering office 
hours. The center is actively looking for a new full-time director as the previous director moved 
back to teaching full-time.

BCC has informally bowed out of the discussions on a trade school. We have moved back to 
discussing the project with HCC. There is also federal funding that could support a project of this 
type, however we will need to have support from community or technical college for 
accreditation. 

The CKEC continues to work with students and residents. CKEC has hosted several workshops 
and a pitch competition for students and the community.  The Center continues to work to 
establish itself as it closes in on one year since the city partnered with Tabor.

Page 5 of 11



Hillsboro Community Strategic Plan Progress Tracking
Goal: Workforce

UPDATES April 2022

UPDATES January 2022
The Key Customer Plan, CEO roundtable and workforce awareness plans are being spearheaded 
by USD 410

The City has been working with Tabor on potential collaborations to promote entrepreneurship 
development. 

The Youth Entrepreneurship Competition will be held in March at Tabor. The competition 
promotes high school business development across the County. HHS students have won the 
competition the last several years. 

The city is in the beginning stages of facilitating conversations between local trades people, the 
Building Center, USD 410 and HCC to discuss a potential training center opportunity.

Partners from USD 410 and the City have had conversations with HCC about potential building 
trades and early childhood care programs to build off what has been started with the welding 
program. Additional conversations are being had with BCCC due to service territory. 

Discussion has happened about a potential partnership with Tabor to start a entrepreneurship 
center that would serve both students and community members. The focus is developing and 
incubating new small businesses that would start in Hillsboro. 

Staff had had some very preliminary conversation with refugee resettlement organizations 
about potentially hosting displaced populations. Additional fact finding and partners will be 
needed to continue down that route. 

The City and Tabor have partnered to form the Central Kansas Entrepreneurship Center at Tabor 
College. The Center is off to a start working on the physical space and beginning programming. 
The CKEC will provide regular reports to the City on interactions and activities.

Page 6 of 11



Hillsboro Community Strategic Plan Progress Tracking
Goal: Community Development

TIER 2 GOAL: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

OBJECTIVES
Grow the Hillsboro population by .05% per year
Complete the Community Plaza project and plan for future park and recreational facilities
Provide opportunity for all residents and businesses to have access to gigabyte internet speeds
Modernize City Planning documents to reflect current needs of the community
Adjust City Codes to promote better partnerships with businesses

STRATEGY START DATE
COMPLETION 

DATE
Implement a community marketing plan focused on increasing visitors 
and residents 2020 Ongoing
Complete phase 1 of the Community Plaza project by 2022, then 
remaining phases 2021 2022
Develop a plan for recreational facilities and park development 
including trails 2023 2023
Work with TCWireless to complete a gigabyte fiber to the premise 
project 2020 COMPLETE

Apply for three additional trail grants for identified trail expansion 2022 2026
Support efforts for a community garden 2021 Ongoing
Review and update the City's Comprehensive Plan, zoning code and 
subdivision regulations 2022 2023
Work with downtown businesses to improve regulations to support 
commerce 2022 Ongoing

UPDATES April 2023

The full community marketing plan has been parked in favor of testing some smaller methods for getting 
the city's message and branding to outside communities and marketing targets. 

The parks, recreational and trail system plans will be included in the city's CIP to be adopted in summer 
2023.

The 5th Grade Garden club has begun the spring season with plantings and starting the garden for the 
season. A dozen students and families have signed on for the growing season.

Make investments in growing the community, increase vitality and continue to sustain a high quality of 
life.

The Community Plaza will be completed for the opening of the summer season in late May. The main 
work on the spray pad is completed. Additional smaller projects and alley parking need to be completed 
before phase 1 is completed. 

Page 7 of 11



Hillsboro Community Strategic Plan Progress Tracking
Goal: Community Development

UPDATES January 2023

UPDATES April 2022

City staff are working as the contractors on the installation of the spray park. Vogts Construction has 
been hired to build the restroom in the community plaza. Phase 1 should be completed by summer of 
2022. Additionally a challenge grant of $80,000 has be posted to build the amphitheater and complete 
the project. 

Trail grant requests have been prepped for KDOT's program and for the Sunflower Foundation. Both will 
be submitted in 2022, KDOT is early summer, Sunflower Foundation is November.

Downtown Business owners will have their first meeting on April 20. The intention is to listen for the first 
session and make suggestions on what can be done to improve downtown. 

Planning Commission members will begin the review process of the Comprehensive Plan in May 2022. 
The process can be lengthy depending on the engagement of the Planning Commission. 

The Community Plaza restroom was substantially completed in January 2023. City crews can complete 
their work on the facility weather permitting. The park should be completed for a spring opening. 

The park-museum complex has had a introductory planning session with staff to identify what needs to 
be addressed. An initial list has been developed and will then be prioritized and costed out. EBH has done 
a rough trail system map including the areas that need to be enhanced or built out.

The Planning Commission is beginning to update the Comprehensive Plan. The city has retained a Tabor 
Intern to help collect the needed data for the update. 

The Community Engagement Coordinator has begun working with HES to determine who will be 
responsible for the community garden with the change in school leadership. 

Efforts on the marketing plan have been moved over to the CVB for development. They will begin 
developing the marketing plan in April 2022.

Page 8 of 11



Hillsboro Community Strategic Plan Progress Tracking
Goal: Financial Stability

TIER 2 GOAL: FINANCIAL STABILITY

OBJECTIVES

STRATEGY START DATE
COMPLETION 

DATE
Allocate necessary funds to meet the General Fund 
requirement for the Fund Balance Policy. 2021 Ongoing
Complete a City-wide capital improvement plan and capital 
equipment plan 2021 2022
Allocate necessary funds to meet the Utility Fund 
requirements for the Fund Balance Policy. 2021 Ongoing
Develop a comprehensive rate and fee schedule for all City 
revenue streams 2020 2022
Work on regular utility rate adjustments to fully fund the 
capital improvement and equipment plan. 2022 Ongoing
Develop a plan for the local option sales tax once the FAC 
bonds are retired in 2025. 2024 Ongoing
Create a stabilization reserve funds for each utility to maintain 
financial stability during unforeseen events. 2022 Ongoing

UPDATES April 2023

Safeguard the City's financial well being with enhanced long-term planning & financial 
management tools

Manage and reduce long-term debt while balancing infrastructure needs
Meet the City's stated fund balance policy goals by 2026

Maintain reasonable income streams and reduce overall costs through operational changes

The electric fund's health should improve in 2023 with the rate adjustment approved in January. 
The first bills with the new rate were sent in March. 

The comprehensive fee schedule is in review with at the staff level and will be moved forward to 
the council the first meeting in May. 

The FAC sales tax fund has been renamed the local option sales tax fund. The intention to 
prepare for the future uses for the fund and not restrict the use of excess funds for other city 
needs. 

EBH is completing the CIP with information on the sewer, water and wastewater systems. 
Information on the park/recreation and museum property will be incorporated. 

Page 9 of 11



Hillsboro Community Strategic Plan Progress Tracking
Goal: Financial Stability

UPDATES January 2023

UPDATES October 2022

UPDATES April 2022

Staff met with EBH to determine a timeline for the remaining sections of the CIP. An agreed 
upon date on April 2023 was arrived on. The street portion has been completed and presented 
to the City Council. 

The Capital Improvement Plan will be completed by mid-2022. The largest area of concern is the 
street system which will require the largest investment to improve. 

The Comprehensive Fee Schedule is being revised by staff and will presented to the City Council 
in early summer. Many fees will need to be adjusted to cover costs. 

Investment in capital improvements, equipment and city facilities is the initial thought for the 
local option sales tax funds, however more work will be needed to determine amounts and 
timing. 

Staff are awaiting the proposed improvement lists from EBH. The initial street list will be 
presented to the Council on October 18.

Investment in capital improvements, equipment and city facilities is the initial plan for the local 
sales tax once it is finished with obligations to debt service. Depending on the size of the needed 
infrastructure additional debt may be needed specifically with regard to roads.

The Comprehensive Fee Schedule is being finished by staff. Implementation should start in early 
2023.

Council has completed reviews of water, sewer, trash and recycling rates. KPP is finishing the 
rate study for electrical and should be presented before 2023.

The FAC sales tax has been renamed the local option sales tax. Bonds for the FAC will retire in 
2023, however the structure of previous debt issuances will require funds from the sales tax be 
used for debt payments. The fund does generate excess compared to the debt service payments 
which leaves some available resources for other purposes. 

The electric fund has been secured with the passage of a rate adjustment in January 2023. That 
fund should meets its target in 2024-25. The other utility funds have been adjusted and should 
likewise meet their fund balance targets by 2026 pending any outstanding projects. The only 
remaining fund that may need adjustment is the sewer fund depending on how changes to the 
winter averaging formula affect revenue.

The development of a comprehensive fee schedule has been delayed by changes in staffing. A 
proposal will be coming in the spring 2023.

Page 10 of 11



Hillsboro Community Strategic Plan Progress Tracking
Goal: Public Safety

TIER 2 GOAL: PUBLIC SAFETY
Provide quality facilities for public safety organizations serving the community
OBJECTIVES
Secure an ideal location Marion County EMS for long-term service 
Improve efficiency by locating HFD equipment in one location
Get HPD out of the dilapidated AMPI building.

STRATEGY START DATE
COMPLETION 

DATE
Work with Marion County EMS on co-locating an EMS facility with 
Hillsboro emergency services 2021 COMPLETE
Develop a concept and plans for new public safety building 2021 COMPLETE

Apply for funding including any grant or community facility programs to 
complete the public safety building 2022 2024
Complete new public safety building 2023 2024

UPDATES April 2023

UPDATES January 2023

UPDATES October 2022

UPDATES April 2022

The concept for the new fire station facility was completed in March 2022. The department submitted it 
for BASE Grant $4.3 million in funds through the KDOC, which would require a 25% match. That grant was 
not funded. Additional options are being considered, but the public safety building will likely be delayed 
until debt can be retired in 2024.

Demolition of the AMPI building was approximately $350,000, but did not include the remediation for 
asbestos and other hazardous materials in the basement. Remediation will be equal to the demolition 
costs if not more according to the contractor. That cost makes destruction of the structure less cost 
effective. It may be possible to demolish portions of the building with no basement, however it is unclear 
if that makes financial sense. 

The fire station building committee met in March to begin developing a more formal plan for a fire 
station. The architect from WDM is now moving into the initial design portion of the process to begin 
laying out the building. The process will take several months to complete. Construction would be pending 
a funding source.

Results of the BASE grant application have not yet been announced. The BASE grant was resubmitted for 
round 2 consideration. The original grant proposal totaled $4.3 million and require a 25% match. 

The station building committee is targeting a February meeting date to begin developing a more formal 
plan for a fire station. Two council members will be needed for those meetings.

The BASE grant was resubmitted for round 2 consideration. The original grant proposal totaled $4.3 
million and require a 25% match. 

HFD will be working with WDM Architects in starting in early 2023 on a developing a more complete set 
of initial plans for a fire station. Initial design plans will be needed to apply for many grant and funding 
programs. 

Page 11 of 11



City Administrator’s Report 
April 18, 2023 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Trinity Mennonite Deed Transfer: The Childcare Center received the deed for the Trinity Church on 
Friday, April 14. The Church celebrated its last service on Easter Sunday. It was bittersweet service, but 
the congregation is excited for the next chapter of the building. There is a match day event at the church 
on April 21 with an opportunity to add to the fundraising total. Currently there are several matching 
dollars from private donors pledged. The CDBG will be submitted on May 1, and H4C has several other 
active grant applications.  

Ash Street Easter Fire: You’ve likely read about the fire at 317 S Ash on Easter. We had an excellent 
response from the fire department as well as the Marion and Durham departments. The fire did some 
damage to the home, but overall was minimal thanks to the efforts of the responders.  

Financial Report: Attached is the financial report for February. The March report is being finalized and 
will be made available later in the week. I will start the dashboard report starting with the first quarter. 
We continue to work on improving and simplifying the reporting of financial information. 

Safety Star Recognition: Kaleb Spencer is the first recipient of our new Safety Star Recognition. Kaleb 
works in the Water/Sewer Department and is a firefighter. He was nominated by Ben Steketee for an 
incident on March 17. While working on a sewer line, Kaleb witnessed a semi-truck fueling at the Epp 
station in Hillsboro Heights catch fire. Jumping into action, Kaleb was able to attack the fire with the 
extinguisher on his service truck. By the time the FD got there, Kaleb had put the fire out avoiding a 
potentially catastrophic situation. The Safety Star Recognition recipient receives a half day off and lunch 
for their department. We recognize Safety Star and MVP recipients on staggered quarters.  

KPP Bill: Attached is the KPP bill for March totaling $105,016.84. Consumption was lower than expected 
for March as we enter the spring season. For reference, the bill for March 2022 was $160,214. The 
consumption difference was 23,957 kWh, but the key difference was energy cost adjustment for 2023 
was negative, saving nearly $18,000. 

Solar Grant with KPP: The City has been included as a potential site for solar installation in a concept 
paper with KPP. The concept paper is for a grant that would put solar generation facilities in 11 KPP 
communities sized from 1 megawatt (MW) up to 7 megawatts (MW). Solar generation can be added 
without the lengthy approval process with Southwest Power Pool as long as it is under the minimum 
load requirements. For Hillsboro that is 1.6 MW. That would require between 10-12 acres of property. 
We have proposed an area near the city’s wastewater lagoons. That area is unlikely to develop due to 
the lagoons and there is sufficient space there to accommodate the solar installation and growth of the 
lagoons. The concept paper was submitted by KPP and, If selected for the grant round, a full proposal 
will be completed. 

Senior Project Updates: We’ve been slowly making progress on Senior Class projects, some from last 
year’s seniors and this year’s seniors. The projects we’re working on are listed below.  

• Park Shelters: Spring Branch is wrapping up the roof replacement and light installation. We’ll 
look at painting and replacing needed wood shortly. 

• Disc Golf Pads: A project from the 2022 Seniors, Rec Commission volunteers, with some city 
help, have completed 12 of 18 tee box pads for the course. The remaining 6 are waiting to be 
scheduled in the next few weeks. 



City Administrator’s Report 
April 18, 2023 

Page 2 of 2 
 

• Downtown Mural: The group received funding from the HCF and will be getting some money 
from the CVB to finish a “Greetings from Hillsboro” mural. The artist is working on concepts. It’s 
possible that it could be done by Arts and Crafts, but the artist suggested that they could be 
working on it during Arts and Crafts which would kind of cool. 

• Safety on Grand & Jefferson: Street crews will adjust the parking and crosswalks lines at the 
school this summer. We are hoping to do surface maintenance in the downtown area this 
summer and we’d have to repaint all the parking lines at that time. 

• Lights at Tabor: We are waiting for a grant period to open for the equipment. In talking with 
Tabor, the master campus plan could include some additional improvements to those crossing 
so we’ll want to have the most flexible signaling option moving forward. 

• North Pond: We still have the north pond in Hillsboro Heights rehab on the radar. We will need 
to rent some equipment for the job and have the necessary staff to do it. There is a possibility to 
do the project in the fall, but it will depend on how far we get on other projects.   

































































PLEASE NOTE NEW 
REMITTANCE ADDRESS

PLEASE REMIT TO:
KANSAS POWER POOL

DEPT 3423
P.O. BOX 123423

DALLAS, TX 75312-3423
City of

P.O. Box 125 Mar-23 4/12/2023
4/22/2023

Peak kW Date Hour Ending

3,008 3/16/2023 17:00

kW/kWh Rate $ Amount

3,008 kW $8.41 $25,297.28 $0.01423
3,008 kW $1.65 $4,963.20 $0.00279

RICE Upgrade 3,008 kW $0.21 $631.68 $0.00036
3,008 kW

0 kW
3,008 kW $5.12 $15,400.96 $0.00866

1,713,400 kWh
64,078 kWh

0 kWh
0 kWh
0 kWh

1,777,478 kWh $0.03168 $56,310.50 $0.03168

1,777,478 kWh ($0.01008000) ($17,916.98) ($0.01008)
1,777,478 kWh $0.01000000 $17,774.78 $0.01000

$102,461.42 $0.05764
$0.00
$0.00

$634.38
$1,921.04

 
$0.02160000

$105,016.84

  
  

 

Service Month: Billing Date:  
Account # 380 Due Date:

 

Ave Cost per 
kWh

Demand Charges
Transmission

Administrative

Energy Cost Adjustment

TOTAL DEMAND AND ENERGY CHARGE

Delivered Capacity
Capacity Adjustment

Capacity Demand

Energy Charges
Metered Energy

Losses

FEB 2021 Storm Surcharge

 
 
 

Hillsboro
Attn: City Clerk

Hillsboro, KS  67063

Past Due / (Credit)
Correction for Prior Month Billing
Distribution Facility Charge
AMI Project Repay

System average cost of energy in $/kWh

TOTAL BILLING THIS PERIOD

Generation
Unsch Generation

Energy Adjustment
Energy 


	Agenda 04-18-23.pdf
	2023.04.04 Council Minutes for Approval
	2023.04.19 Vouchers for Approval $208,242.46 SCANNED
	2023.04.18 Dog Confinement SR P
	2023.04.18 Dog Confinement SR.pdf
	Ordinance 1366 Dog Confinement Hillsboro.pdf

	2023.04.18 Sewer Lining SR P
	2023.04.18 Sewer Lining SR.pdf
	4.18.23 Revised Johnson Proposal.pdf

	2023.04.18 Chlorine Dioxide Generator SR P
	2023.04.18 Chlorine Dioxide Generator SR.pdf
	04.18.23 DF Proposal.pdf

	2023.04.18 Municipal Policy 100 Rental of Facilities
	2023.04.18 NRP SR
	4.18.23 Q1 Strategic Plan Update
	Childcare
	Housing
	Workforce
	Community Development
	FInancial Stability
	Public Safety

	Administrators Report 04.18.2023 P
	Administrators Report 04.18.2023.pdf
	2023.02 Financial Reports for Council SCANNED
	Hillsboro KPP March billing 2023 10




